ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE COMMUNI TY AND REGQ ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 28, 2017
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Zach Fansl er, Co-Chair
Representative Justin Parish, Co-Chair
Representative Harriet Drunmond
Represent ati ve Dean Westl ake

Represent ati ve George Rauscher
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative David Tal erico

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve DeLena Johnson (alternate)
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss-Tonkins (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 47

"An Act requiring certain nmunicipalities with a population that
decreased by nore than 25 percent between 2000 and 2010 that
participate in the defined benefit retirenent plan of the Public
Enpl oyees’ Retirenent System of Alaska to contribute to the
system an anount cal culated by applying a rate of 22 percent of
the total of all base salaries paid by the nmunicipality to
enpl oyees of the nunicipality who are active nenbers of the
system during a payroll period; authorizing the adm nistrator of
the defined benefit retirenent plan of the Public Enployees’
Retirement System of Alaska to reduce the rate of interest
payable by certain nmunicipalities that are delinquent in
transmtting enployee and enployer contributions to the
retirement plan; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 47

SHORT TITLE: MUNI Cl PAL PERS CONTRI BUTI ONS/ | NTEREST
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FOSTER

01/ 18/ 17 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/13/17
01/ 18/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 28, 2017



01/ 18/ 17 (H) CRA, FIN
02/ 28/ 17 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

PAUL LABOLLE, Staff

Representati ve Neal Foster

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 47 on behalf of Representative
Foster, prime sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE NEAL FOSTER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prime sponsor, offered remarks during
t he hearing on HB 47.

KATH E WASSERVAN, Executive Director

Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 47.

JON KORTA, Mayor

Cty of Galena

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 47.

SHANDA HUNTI NGTON, Manager

Cty of Galena

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question during the hearing on
HB 47.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8: 00: 58 AM

CO- CHAIR JUSTIN PARISH called the House Conmmunity and Regi ona
Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m
Representatives Talerico, Saddler, Wstlake, Rauscher, Fansler,
and Parish were present at the call to order. Representati ve
Drumond arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 47- MUNI Cl PAL PERS CONTRI BUTI ONS/ | NTEREST

8:01:48 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 28, 2017



CO- CHAI R PARI SH announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 47, "An Act requiring certain nunicipalities
with a popul ation that decreased by nore than 25 percent between
2000 and 2010 that participate in the defined benefit retirenment
plan of the Public Enployees' Retirenent System of Alaska to
contribute to the system an anount cal cul ated by applying a rate
of 22 percent of the total of all base salaries paid by the
muni ci pality to enployees of the nunicipality who are active
menbers of the system during a payroll period; authorizing the
adm nistrator of the defined benefit retirenent plan of the
Publ i ¢ Enpl oyees' Retirement System of Al aska to reduce the rate
of i nt erest payable by certain nunicipalities that are
delinquent in transmtting enployee and enployer contributions
to the retirement plan; and providing for an effective date."

8:02:41 AM

PAUL LABOLLE, Staff, Representative Neal Foster, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 47 on behalf of Representative Foster,
prime sponsor. He paraphrased the sponsor statenent [included
in the conmttee packet], which read as follows [original
punctuation provided, with sone formatti ng changes]:

HB 47 seeks to correct an unintended consequence of
the PERS “salary floor” established in Senate Bill 125
of the 25th Legislature.

Senate Bill 125 <changed the PERS system from a
multiple enployer plan to a cost share plan. It
transferred the individual liability of the 160 PERS
enpl oyers and consolidated it so that all t he
enpl oyers share in that liability.

Senate Bill 125 also created what is commonly referred
to as the 2008 salary floor. This requires enployers
contribute 22% of annual salaries or 22% of FY 08
salaries, whichever is greater. The floor was

instituted to ensure that the system could not be
“ganed” by discouraging enployers from replacing PERS
enpl oyees wth contract hires to reduce their base
contribution to the system

Some nmunicipalities have found thenselves under the

2008 floor through no fault of their own. A large
change in population results in a reduced tax base,

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 28, 2017



which affects the services a city can provide. As
that financial reality drives a city to downsize,
current |aw exacerbates this problem by keeping their
PERS contribution at the 2008 |evel. This bill
targets the communities whose population has dropped
by nore than 25% si nce the previous census.

HB 47 will address this issue in tw ways:

1. Establish a new floor of FY 2012 for conmunities
whose popul ation decreased by nore than 25% between
2000 and 2010.

2. Allows the PERS administrator to negotiate penalty
interest rates on delinquent paynents.

HB 47 does not intend to repeat the “2008 floor”
debate but to correct one  of the unintended
consequences caused by the arbitrary line that debate
creat ed.

| urge your support of this |egislation.
8:04:48 AM

MR. LABOLLE stated that from a fiscal point of view, as the
[ anbunt owed in] paynents continues to increase and comunities
are unable to pay, and because the conmunities cannot, under
state | aw, declare bankruptcy and cannot dissolve wthout first
resolving their debts, these communities "turn off the Ilights
and |l eave the keys in the door," and as a result the state nust
pay the entirety of the Public Enployees' Retirenent System
(PERS) obligation, not just its own portion of it.

MR. LABOLLE naned the follow ng communities cited in HB 47 that
have | ost popul ation: Anderson, St. George, Atka, Pelican, and
Galena. O the five, Pelican and Galena are the only ones that
woul d be affected by the proposed |egislation, because Anderson
and St. George no |longer have any PERS enployees and Atka is
presently above the 2008 salary floor in its gross salaries.

8:06:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEAL FOSTER, Al aska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor of HB 47, stated that one of the concerns was that
muni ci palities would contract out for their enployees so that
the enployees were not actually on their rolls, thus the

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 28, 2017



comunities were not responsible for having to contribute to the

retirement system He indicated a floor was set to prevent
muni ci palities from gamng the system which was a good thing;
however, it was not foreseen that conmunities such as Gl ena

would have a mlitary base leave its small community and end up
having to substantially reduce the nunber of people on the

enpl oyee rolls. Wien that happened, he said, Glena' s bill
began adding up, because the nunicipality is liable for a
m ni mum anount of paynment into the retirenment system and yet it
has significantly |ower personnel on its enployee rolls. He
echoed M. Labolle's caution that the community nmay just shut
down and [l eave the state with the full paynment obligation]. He

said HB 47 provides the opportunity to continue to allow those
affected by this issue to continue to operate as a municipality
and be able to pay at least a mninmal rate rather than wal king
away W t hout payi ng anyt hi ng.

8:08:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked how nmuch the state is "on the hook
for."

MR. LABOLLE answered that to know the amount in total, an
actuarial study needs to be done, and a study will at sone point
be conpleted and the results wll be added to the proposed

| egislation before it is heard by the House Finance Commttee.
In regard to the difference in cost going forward, he advised

that for the two affected communities: Take the FY 08 floor,
subtract the FY 12 floor, and multiply that by 22 percent - the
contribution rate - and that equals the "worst-case scenario,”

which is about $186, 000. He explained that neither Galena nor
Pelican are at that worst-case scenario, at FY 12; they are

payi ng above that. He said, "Wat those ... gross salaries wll
be in the future is indetermnate, so we don't know what the
total cost will be, but that's as bad as it gets."

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER, in reference to the aforenentioned
muni ci palities, asked, "How bad off are they?"

MR. LABOLLE responded that he is not well acquainted wth
Pelican, but it is a small fishing town that has been dw ndling
over the years. He added that although the proposed |egislation

woul d certainly help Pelican, it may not be enough help. He
said Galena is doing quite well, having begun biomass heating
and doing quite a bit wthin the comunity to be self-
sufficient; however, it still has a |loom ng, crushing debt. In

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 28, 2017



response to a followup question, he renaned the Ilist of
conmuni ti es.

8:12: 34 AM

CO- CHAIR PARI SH noted that the list of communities affected is
found on "the second page of your first fiscal note.”

8:12: 52 AM

MR. LABOLLE, in response to Representative Rauscher, reiterated
the reasons why Anderson, St. GCeorge, and Atka would not be
affected by the proposed |egislation. He stated that in FY 12,
gross salaries for Galena were $755,000 and were up to $913, 000
for FY 16 gross salaries. Pelican's gross salaries were down to
$105,000 and are now up to $135, 000. He concluded, "So, those
enpl oyees' salaries are grow ng."

8:14: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SADDLER asked if the affected conmunities
increased their contribution to PERS in the face of their
reduced enployee counts or "did they just let it ride at the
sane rate?" He explained he was trying to figure out why the
i ncreasi ng delinquencies occurred.

MR. LABOLLE answered that Galena maintained its 22 percent
paynment on current gross salaries rather than paying the 2008
fl oor, which he confirmed would have been nore noney.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER concl uded then that Galena had "adhered
to one of the requirenents and not the other."

MR. LABOLLE answered that is correct. In response to a follow
up question, he said whether or not Glena should be held
cul pable for that choice is the policy call of the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said he knows that the U S. Departnent of
Def ense (DoD) offers econom c readjustnent funds to comunities
that are affected by base closures. He asked if the City of
Gal ena obtained any benefit from DoD for econom c readjustnment
after the air station was cl osed.

MR. LABOLLE deferred to representatives from Galena to answer
t he question. He did offer his awareness that "they did |eave
behind a significant anount of fuel for the city,"” which has
been using that as a bridge while working on its biomass energy

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 28, 2017



sour ce. In response to a followup question, he offered his
understanding that the mlitary had pulled out of Galena in
2008.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER questioned whether HB 47 would be a fix
for only a couple of specific situations and if other
communities mght experience such a "large reduction" [in
popul ation] . He said he wants to ensure the legislature sets
the right policy for the future rather than just fixing an
i ndi vidual situation that potentially could be fixed by "working

a deal or special appropriation or a special assessnent.” He
said, "I don't know whether this is an appropriate situation to
be meking ongoing future policy.” He cautioned that one

solution that mght work for Galena may not work for another
comunity.

MR. LABOLLE proffered that the way the 2008 | aw was passed tied
the hands of the administration and did not allow a deal to be
made. The admi nistration has to collect the '"08 floor or the
gross salaries, whichever is greater - it has no negotiating
option in statute - and delinquent paynents nust be assessed the
statutory 12 percent interest rate - the admnistration has no
option on that.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said he had not gone through the statute
to figure out what 12 percent is, but surnmised it is a good dea
higher in the current market. He asked whether there is a
section in [the proposed bill] that mght reset that interest
rate.

MR. BOLE answered that there is no provision under HB 47 to
reset the interest rate, but there is a provision that would
allow the PERS admnistrator to "negotiate the delinquent
interest rate for affected communities.” He said the 12 percent
interest rate is "not set by the nunber 12," but is set by the
expected actuarial return, which is 8 percent, then one and a
hal f tinmes that, which is 12.

8:18: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMVOND said she feels |ike she has seen this
bill at least twice in the |last four years. She stated that the
af orenenti oned conmunities had paid "all of the PERS supports
for enployees that they had when they had them™"™ She asked for
confirmation that HB 47 woul d assist those conmunities that have
| ost enpl oyees and, thus, fallen below the floor that was set in
2008, and those communities paid the contributions for the PERS

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -7- February 28, 2017



enpl oyees at the tinme they actually had the enployees and
continue to pay for any PERS enployees they do have; "it's just
that the floor was set artificially high and they have fallen
bel ow i n sone cases."

MR LABOLLE confirnmed that is correct.
8:19: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER clarified that communities pay only part
of the PERS obligation, while the State of Al aska pays the rest.

MR. LABCLLE clarified that the comunities have paid their gross
sal ary requirenent of 22 percent; however, they paid it on their
current enpl oyees and not on the 2008 fl oor.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if the State of Alaska had paid in
excess of that 22 percent.

MR LABOLLE deferred to the adm ni stration

8:20:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WESTLAKE said HB 47 |ooks |like a good bill. He
observed, "You're |ocking down the floor; you' re going from 2000
to 2010 on that." He asked, "Is there a reason we're going to
an off vyear, a 2012 level, as we're talking about the PERS
rather than the chronological lock ... that we have on here?"

MR. LABOLLE answered that 2012 is the "bottom ng out point"” for
both the affected comunities; it's the point at which the
salaries of those communities stopped going down and "started
goi ng back up."

8:21:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO asked if "the bill that we would submt"
to Gal ena "woul d be about 50 percent of their current enpl oyees
salary level."

MR. LABOLLE answered that [Galena's] gross salaries were at
approximately $1.5 million in FY 08 and now are at approximtely
$900, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO asked for «clarification that "they're

still well above the 22 percent because of that floor that's
structured there."

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 8- February 28, 2017



MR. LABOLLE answered that [Galena] is below the FY 08 floor, but
above the FY 12 fl oor.

8:22:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER expressed concern that people wll see
the state bailing out these communities from bankruptcy and wl|
get the nessage that they will "get a break" if they don't pay
the state back and instead spend their noney on sonething el se.

MR. LABCOLLE said he thinks it is better to have [municipalities]
pay what they can rather than have the state be on the hook for
the entire anount.

8. 24:. 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER indicated that he thinks [Representative
Rauscher made] a valid point. He said he thinks this is a
policy call and "you take things on a case-by-case basis.” He

opined that the situation where a mlitary base relocates is one
for which the state can nmake an exception, but perhaps in a case
where a snmaller mlitary unit noves out the decision may not be
the sane. He said it is a subjective issue.

8:25:40 AM

MR. LABCLLE pointed out that because the netric of the bill is
based on the 2000 and 2010 Censuses, the information has already
been gathered on the aforenentioned comunities and all the
detail s about each them are known.

8:26:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER stated that the |egislature is encouraged
not to pass legislation that benefits any one person or entity.
He asked if the sponsor thinks that "the narrow applicability”
of the proposed |egislation is cause for concern.

MR. LABCOLLE answered that "the single entity is not specified in
| egi sl ation.” He said the proposed legislation has to do with
popul ation loss, and it just so happens that there are only five
comunities with such a high popul ation | oss. He said the bar
was set high on purpose, and when the bill sponsor initiated HB
47, he did not know how many communities woul d be affected.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -9- February 28, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked M. Labolle to talk about the
circunstances under which the four comunities besides Gl ena
experienced a |arge drop in popul ation.

MR. LABOLLE deferred to Representative Talerico for information
pertaining to Anderson; he said Pelican is a fishing community
that has |ost people that have noved el sewhere; and he said he
could not answer the question in relation to St. George and
At ka.

8:28:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO offered that a change in the nanagenent
plan at the Clear Airforce Station and a new shift structure
resulted in nore of its active nenbers living elsewhere and
commuting to the base.

8:29:33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER observed that although there is a zero
fiscal note, the proposed legislation would cost the state
$1, 014, 000.

VR. LABOLLE responded that the fiscal note is actually
indeterm nate and there certainly will be a cost associated with
HB 47. He said the actuarial study he nentioned before wll
when done, give a guideline, but will not give an exact cost.
He explained that under HB 47, the unfunded liability in PERS
will be increased slightly. He said David Teal from Legislative
Fi nance described that increase when conpared to the entire
system as "deci mal dust."

8:31: 36 AM

KATH E WASSERMAN, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal League
(AML), told the conmittee that she had been the nmayor of the
City of Pelican for over eight years, and the reason [for the
drop in population there] was not just people noving to Juneau

but that the main economc driver of Pelican for about 80 years
was a cold storage, which was purchased by Kake Triba

Corporation, who then went into bankruptcy and left town. She
said that took away the majority of jobs, and nmany fishernen
went el sewhere to sell their fish. In terms of whether Pelican
is a viable community, she said that is up in the air. She
poi nted out that many small conmunities such as Pelican rely on
the certain decisions nade by the | egislature.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -10- February 28, 2017



M5. WASSERVAN stated that AML and all 164 nunicipalities - or at
| east all those with PERS enpl oyees - have been working for many
years on this issue. She said HB 47 norphed from a study done
related to termnation costs and belowthe-floor costs, which
have taken a toll on nost nunicipalities by not allowng themto
be flexible with their workforce, because if a nunicipality
falls below the 2008 floor, it automatically incurs added
expenses. She said, "So, in order to trim ... your enployee
base, you're going to look at adding noney to your budget,
rather than ... depleting your budget, ... in sonme ways." She
stated that when "these other comunities"” that could not pay
the belowthe-floor cost began incurring 12 percent, "we saw
that amount just skyrocket." She said at sone point the state
will not get that noney, because those cities do not make enough
in any year to be able to pay the amobunt they owe the state.

MS. WASSERMAN st at ed:

To say that "well, we don't want to set a precedent,”
and "these conmunities have got to pay what they owe,"”
r emenber : this all cane about because we have taken

on the responsibility to pay 22 percent of the
state PERS retirenent system that was m snanaged by
t he state.

M5. WASSERMAN stated that AM. supports HB 47 as a help to a few
smal | communi ti es. She indicated that AML would work wth
communities to find ways to manage their personnel in a better,
nore effective way.

8:35:47 AM

CO CHAI R PARI SH opened public testinmony on HB 47, acknow edgi ng
that he had not done so prior to Ms. WAssernman's testinony.

8:36: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER offered an anal ogy of sonmeone who has a
car loan and cannot make paynments because of job |oss but then
starts getting late fees and higher interest rates, which
snowbal . He asked if the analogy illustrates what is happening
with some municipalities.

M5. WASSERMVAN answered yes. She indicated that when this issue

first came to her attention, Galena had a bill for $194, 000.
Years l|ater, that community could be facing a bill of over one

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -11- February 28, 2017



mllion dollars. She said, "At sone point, you just don't keep
tacki ng on thousands and thousands and thousands of dollars [in]

i nterest, because nobody's going to wn. The state ... can't
collect fromvery small comunities." She said Pelican does not
have the ability to pay 12 percent interest. She added, "I nean
they didn't even go out and get sonething for this bill." She
reiterated that these small communities have taken on the

state's liability. She concluded, "So, at sonme point, it's just
not going to happen.”

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER suggested that the analogy that may fit
nore closely is one related to credit card debt wth high
interest rates rather than car paynents. He noted that M.
Wasserman had said this is not a conmmunity obligation but is a
state obligation. He asked, "Does a local nunicipality bear any
responsibility for the retirenent cost for its enployees or is
that entirely a state cost?"

V. WASSERVMAN  answer ed t hat muni ci palities have t aken
responsibility by paying 22 percent of salary, and a great
portion of that goes to the unfunded liability. She enphasi zed
that nunicipalities have not fought and will not fight that 22
per cent .

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how nuch the state has taken on
above the 22 percent threshold as part of its "agreenent to help
bear that cost for the poly subs.™

M5. WASSERMAN answered, "This vyear | think the actuaria
required rate is 25 percent, so 25.1, so | think year it's 3.1
percent.”

8:39: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER told Ms. Wasserman that there are al ways
two sides to every story and he appreci ated hearing her side.

8:39:44 AM

JON KCORTA, Mayor, City of Galena, enphasized the inportance of
HB 47 for communities such as Galena that have seen popul ation
decreases in the |ast decade. He related that the Galena
forward operating location (FOL) was closed by the US Ar
Force on 10/1/10 as part of the Base Realignnment and C osure
(BRAC), but the process had been in notion for four years. He
said the air force base was the main source of enploynent for
residents of Galena, and not surprisingly, the base closure

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -12- February 28, 2017



resulted in a reduction of the population. He said in 2000, the
Cty of Galena had 675 residents; in 2010, the comunity had
470, which represented a 30 percent decline. He said the Gty
of Galena was again hit by hardship in the spring of 2013, when
ice dammed the Yukon River and inundated the city, leading to a
federal disaster declaration.

MR. KORTA said the 2008 floor established by current |aw did not
prevent a nunicipality from gai ning PERS by contracting out work
previously performed by nunicipal enployees in order to avoid
maki ng ongoing contributions to PERS He said the current
m nimum contribution is based on the level of salaries that
exi sted in 2008. He said, "This purpose does not account for
Galena's situation.™ He said it neither intended nor does it
contenplate nunicipalities with sharply declining populations.
He said HB 47 does not change the PERS policy, but recognizes
nuance, because the proposed |egislation would recognize those
communities, like Galena, that suffered a mninum 25 percent
decline in population between 2000 and 2010. He said to put
that in perspective, the 25 percent threshold would represent
the loss of 75,000 people from Anchorage or 8,000 people from
Juneau. He asked the commttee to consider what would happen if
t he borough's popul ation declined by 30,000, while at the sane
time Fort Wainwight and Eielson Air Force Base were closed. He
said the demand for nunicipal adm nistrative and public services
woul d decline sharply, and so would the nunicipality's ability
to provide these services having lost the region's economc
driver.

MR. KORTA said HB 47, which would nove the floor from 2008 to
2012 for the comrunities that have experienced these huge | osses
does not provide a |oophole allowing Galena, or any other
community with a simlar population |oss between 2000 and 2010,

to "gane the systemnow or in the future." He said the Cty of
Gal ena' s budgeted payroll for fiscal year 2015 (FY 15) is "above
the 2012 anount for 17 enployees,” though the «city's

circunstances are not a result of any choices that it made. He
said the relationship between the declining population and the
declining payroll is clear: Fewer residents lead to fewer
public enploys, which in turn leads to |ower public payroll.
M. Korta stated that based on the 2008 floor, the City of

Galena is required to pay an anount "owed by a city
substantially larger than Galena.” Galena's required PERS
contribution approaches half of the city's entire payroll. He

said the City of Galena's FY 08 salary total was $1,513,365 for
36 enployees; therefore, the ~city's annual m ni rum PERS
contribution is $332,940. He said in FY 12, the City of

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -13- February 28, 2017



Gal ena's payroll was $765,000 for 17 enployees, and that is the
year that HB 47 proposes to nove the floor for cities that saw a
decrease in popul ation between 2000 and 2010. He said under the
2008 fl oor, the Gty of Gl ena's  annual m ni rum PERS
contribution is nearly half of the city's entire payroll cost.
He stated that for the Gty of Galena, the difference in PERS
contributions between the 2008 and 2012 floors is $154, 000. He
indicated that the difference would continue to increase going
forward. Under statute, any unpaid anbunt accrues interest at
12 percent.

MR. KORTA stated, "This ever-increasing obligation adds to an
al ready stressed situation.” He said the city's financial
situation was so severe in FY 11 that it required a | owinterest
| oan through the Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank to address the
severe cash flow crisis that was preventing the city from being

able to secure fuel for heat and electricity. He enphasi zed
that if the city cannot pay its bills, "the lights go out in
Gal ena. " He opined that the 2008 floor was a "solid piece of

| egislation furthering its own policy," but it does not account
for cities that have suffered nassive population contractions.
The proposed bill would further the underlying policy goals of
the regulatory structure and help ensure that municipalities are
able to continue contributing to PERS, while recognizing that a
city "cannot and should not have to nake the contribution of a
city that has a significantly |arger population.™ He opi ned
that recognizing that the Cty of Glena is not the sane
community it was before the base closed and 30 percent of its
popul ati on noved away is good policy that would help ensure that
the community continues to contribute to PERS while keeping its
[ights on. He concluded, "Recognizing the reality of sharply
declining populations is a worthy anendnment and is just plain
fair."

8:46:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if the U S. Departnent of Defense
(DoD) offered the Cty of Galena any econonm c readjustnent
assi stance either t hrough goods or servi ces, fi nanci ng,
equi pnent, or cash. He also asked if the mlitary facility that
had been in Galena was a "forward air station."

MR. KORTA reiterated that it was an FOL. He said that he was
not the wmyor at that tine, but the nost significant
contribution offered by the air force at that tinme was fuel

whi ch the conmunity was able to utilize and still uses to this
day to operate a boarding school on the base. He said the use

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -14- February 28, 2017



of that fuel has allowed the Cty of Gilena to "grow that
program " He related that the city is transitioning away from
diesel fuel and into biomass. In response to a followup
guestion from Representative Saddl er, regarding the value of the
fuel, he deferred to the city manager

8:47:37 AM

SHANDA  HUNTI NGTQN, Manager , Cty of @lena, of fered her
recollection that the Gty of Galena received 1.9 mllion
gallons of fuel in 2009 to support the boarding hone school
pr ogram In response to a followup question, she said she

thinks the value placed on the fuel at the tinme was $1.92 [per
gal | on] .

8:48: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER expressed appreciation for the testinony
given by the mayor of the Cty of Gal ena.

8:48: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WESTLAKE asked if the fuel was a federal or state
asset at the tine.

MR, KORTA said he assunmes that it was a federal asset.
8:49: 20 AM
M5. HUNTI NGTON began to paraphrase her witten testinony

[included in the conmttee packet], which read as follows
[original punctuation provided, with sone formatti ng changes]:

My nane [is] Shanda Huntington and | am the city
manager for Galena, Al aska. Before serving as the city
manager, | served as the city clerk for 6 years. | was
also born in Glena, grew up there, and raised ny
children in Galena. | would like to follow up on Mayor
Korta’s testinony wth information relating to

Gal ena’ s popul ation decline, the base closure, and the
effects on city payroll and finances.

As Mayor Korta said, the air force base officially
closed in 2010, followng a nulti-year drawdown. 1In
1990, before base realignnent, Galena s popul ation was
847. (Galena has always been a small city and the base
was the driver of economc activity. According to the

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 15- February 28, 2017



2000 census, the nunber of residents, which does not
include all of the Air Force personnel, was 675. That
nunber had dropped to 470 with the 2010 census. 205
people may not sound like a lot, but it represents a
30% decrease in the City's resident popul ati on between
the two censuses. 30% of residents noved away, but the
decline in the <city’'s economc activity was much
greater. Wthout the base, the decline in demand for
city services was disproportionate to the population
decr ease.

For FY 2008, the current floor year, Galena s salary
total was $1,513,365.19 for 36 enployees. Therefore,
Gal ena’ s annual m ni num PERS contribution is $332, 940.
In FY 2012, the anended floor year, Glena s payrol

was $765,776 for 17 enpl oyees. Between FY 2008 and FY
2012, Galena’s payroll was cut in half, reflecting the
decrease in population and in economc activity.
Galena’s current annual mninmum PERS contribution of
$332,940 is nearly half of the City's FY 2012 tota

payroll costs. Alowing a floor year of 2012 for
cities that experienced a drastic decrease in
popul ati on changes Gal ena’ s annual m ni mum

contribution to $168, 940.

For Galena, the difference in PERS contributions
between the 2008 floor and FY 2012 actual payroll is
$164,000. This difference will continue going forward
creating an ever increasing obligation. By statute,
any anount unpaid accrues conpounded interest at 12%
This ever-increasing obligation adds to an already
stressed situation. The Cty’'s financial situation was
so severe in FY 2011 that it required a |ow interest
| oan through the Al aska Muinicipal Bond Bank to deal
with a severe cash flow crisis that was preventing us
from being able to secure fuel for heat and
electricity. Sinply put, if Glena can't pay its
bills, the Iights go out in Gl ena.

Reasonably adjusting the floor year for severely
i npacted cities does not nean that the cities will pay
the mninmm anount only. Mdifying the floor vyear
changes @Glena’s mininmum annual contribution from
$332,940 to $168,940; the actual contribution may be
hi gher. For FY 2013, Galena would in fact pay nore
than that anended mninmum For FY 2013, Galena added
one enployee, for a total payroll of $895, 784.53. For

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -16- February 28, 2017



FY 2013, Galena’s contribution would have been above
the 2012 fl oor by approxi mately $30, 000.

HB 47 sinply recognizes that reality of drastic
popul ati on decreases experienced by sone Al aska
cities, using a clearly defined netric: a 25% decrease
i n popul ation according the 2000 and 2010 censuses.

The base closure has been very difficult for Galena.
As previously noted, Galena required a low interest
| oan through the Al aska Municipal Bond Bank to secure
fuel for heat and electricity in FY 2011. In the |ast
several years, Galena s finances have stabilized and
there are weven indicators of recovery after the
catastrophic decline. W cannot say what wll happen
to Galena’ s population long-term but we believe that
we’'ve turned a corner in terns of population and
finances.

The City of Galena is adjusting to a new reality
followng the base closure and loss of 30% of the
popul ation. This legislation is one part of that
adjustnment. | becane city manager during a difficult
period for the Cty. Qur finances have stabilized
somewhat over the |ast several years. Requiring the
City of Galena to pay to PERS a contribution owed by a
much larger city weakens Glena, and threatens its
ability to provide any contribution to PERS. W are

cautiously optimstic that the Cty wll becone
stronger and even grow over tine. If and when Gl ena
beconmes the city it was in 2008, the city wll be
required to make a PERS contribution conmensurate with
that size and payroll, and will do so gladly, but it’'s

not that <city right now and the oversized PERS
contribution inhibits it from becom ng so.

Recognizing the reality of drastically declining
populations is a matter of sinple fairness. The
anendnent recognizes this and ultimately pronotes the
goals of PERS: ensuring that Alaska nmunicipalities
continue to contribute their fair share to the system

I’d like to thank the conmttee for taking tine today
so that | may explain the inportance of this amendnent
for comunities Iike Galena that have seen significant
popul ati on decreases in the |ast decade.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -17- February 28, 2017



8:55:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what the population of the schoo
is and whether the trend is that it is on the increase or
decline or hol di ng steady.

M5. HUNTINGTON offered her wunderstanding that currently the
popul ation at the boarding hone school is 225 students and the
nunber is increasing.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said he appreciates that the Gty of
Galena is looking to the future and trying to build itself up as

an educational center. He remarked that by his calculation, the
af orenenti oned di esel price per gallon would nean that the total
value of the fuel was approximately $3.6 mllion. He asked if

the value of that was used solely for the school or if sone of
it was wused to help out wth the nmunicipal governnment's
expenses.

M5. HUNTI NGTON recollected that in 2008, the Cty of Glena
transferred 300,000 gallons to its power plant, but was
penalized for three years followng that, and she said she
thinks the Gty of Galena |learned a hard | esson because of that.
She said right now the fuel is used solely for the school. In
response to a followup question, she said she believes there
are 385,000 [gallons remaining] in the tank.

8:57:39 AM

CO- CHAIR PARI SH, after ascertaining that there was no one else
who wi shed to testify, closed public testinony on HB 47.

8:57:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked if the intent is to pass the bil
out of comm ttee today.

CO CHAI R PARI SH answered no, but possibly as soon as Thursday.
8:58: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said special interest |egislation causes
him concern because it sets a bad overtone, and HB 47 would

address only those commnities that "happen to fall into this
trench. ™ He suggested he may speak with the bill sponsor to
consider all comunities in the future that see such a

significant drop in population from Census to Census, because

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 18- February 28, 2017



what happens in each ten-year period may result in the need to
bring simlar |egislation back before the | egislature.

[HB 47 was hel d over. ]

8:58: 54 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 8:59 a.m

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -19- February 28, 2017



